PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 3 October 2017

Minutes of the meeting of the Planning and Transportation Committee held at the Guildhall EC2 at 10.30 am

Present

Members:

Christopher Hayward (Chairman) Deputy Alastair Moss (Deputy Chairman) Randall Anderson Alderman Sir Michael Bear Mark Bostock Henry Colthurst Peter Dunphy Emma Edhem Marianne Fredericks Graeme Harrower Christopher Hill Alderman Robert Howard Deputy Jamie Ingham Clark

Officers:

Amanda Thompson	-	Town Clerk's Department
Jennifer Ogunleye	_	Town Clerk's Department
0,		•
Carolyn Dwyer	-	Director of Built Environment
Annie Hampson	-	Department of the Built Environment
Alison Hurley	-	Department of the Built Environment
Paul Monaghan	-	Department of the Built Environment
Simon Owen	-	Department of the Built Environment
Steve Presland	-	Department of the Built Environment
Ted Rayment	-	Department of the Built Environment
lain Simmons	-	Department of the Built Environment
Rachel Sambells	-	Department of Markets & Consumer Protection
Deborah Cluett	-	Comptrollers & City Solicitor
Peter Young	-	City Surveyor's Department
Jon Averns	-	Department of Markets & Consumer Protection
Mike Radcliffe	-	City Surveyor's Department
Sam Lee	-	Department of the Built Environment
Bruce McVean	-	Department of the Built Environment

Alderman Vincent Keaveny Oliver Lodge Paul Martinelli Andrew Mayer Deputy Brian Mooney Sylvia Moys Graham Packham Susan Pearson Deputy Henry Pollard James de Sausmarez Oliver Sells QC Graeme Smith William Upton

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Sir Mark Boleat, Deputy Keith Bottomley, Sophie Anne Fernandes, Alderman Gregory Jones QC, Barbara Newman, Jason Pritchard and Deputy James Thomson.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There were no declarations.

3. MINUTES

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2017 be approved as a correct record.

4. DELEGATED DECISIONS

The Committee received a report of the Chief Planning Officer and Development Director in respect of development and advertisement applications dealt with under delegated authority.

A Member asked if in future it would be possible to have an explanation of the abbreviations given in the graph and this was agreed.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

5. VALID APPLICATIONS LIST FOR COMMITTEE

The Committee received a report of the Chief Planning Officer and Development Director which provided details of valid planning applications received by the department since the last meeting.

A Member highlighted the fact that given the period of time since the last meeting, some of the applications would already have been dealt with under delegated powers.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

6. PUBLIC LIFT REPORT

The Committee received a report of the City Surveyor providing an update in respect of the status of public lifts and escalators in the City.

RESOLVED: That the report be received and its content noted.

7. REPORTS RELATIVE TO PLANNING APPLICATIONS

a) 6-8 Bishopsgate And 150 Leadenhall Street London

The Committee received a report of the CPO in relation to the demolition of the

existing building and erection of a new building at 6-8 Bishopsgate and 150 Leadenhall Street London.

The CPO advised that the proposed development would provide a significant increase in flexible office accommodation, retail uses and publicly accessible space on this site, which would assist in meeting the needs of the financial and business services of the City as well as visitors. The Assistant Director (Design) further described the proposals.

Members asked a number of questions concerning the pavement space at ground level and the impact on the safety of pedestrians and cyclists, whether or not advertising boards could be prohibited, what the consolidation arrangements were, whether or not the S106 Agreement could include the developer addressing any resulting wind tunnel and general safety issues, and whether or not the design could be improved to prevent the reduction of space at ground level.

Debate ensued and while many Members spoke in support of the application, they also expressed concern about the lack of pavement space and the risks to pedestrians. It was noted that the proximity of the proposed building to the new Crossrail station would also increase the number of pedestrians in the area.

Officers advised that appropriate highway measures would be secured through S.278 arrangements as part of the S106 Agreement, and obstructions on the pavement would also be prohibited.

The Director of the Built Environment advised that there was currently an area strategy in place for the area and suggested these issues could be looked at again as part of that.

The CPO suggested that were the Committee minded to approve the application, it would be possible to do so and refer any S278 agreements and related highway requirements back to the Committee for further scrutiny.

The Chairman agreed and MOVED an amendment to Recommendation 3) which was SECONDED by the Deputy Chairman.

The amendment was put to the vote and was UNANIMOUS.

The Committee then voted on the substantive proposals as amended, the result of which was as follows:

16 votes in favour 6 votes against

RESOLVED - That

 The Mayor of London be given 14 days to decide whether to allow the Corporation to grant planning permission as recommended, or to direct refusal, or to determine the application himself (Article 5(1)(a) of the Town & Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2008);

- Planning permission be GRANTED for the above proposal in accordance with the details set out in the attached schedule subject to planning obligations and other agreements being entered into in respect of those matters set out in the report, the decision notice not to be issued until such obligations have been executed;
- 3) Officers be instructed to negotiate and execute obligations in respect of those matters set out in the report under Section 106;
- 4) Officers be instructed to negotiate obligations in respect of agreements under Section 278 of the Highway Act 1980, and that these be brought back to the Committee for approval prior to execution.

8. **REPORTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT**

a) Thames Court Footbridge

The Committee received a further report on the acquisition of the footbridge which had previously been considered on 23 May and 25 July 2017.

Members expressed frustration that no progress had been made since the meeting on 23 May, given that the bridge had been closed since October 2016.

They questioned why an initial assessment of the bridge had not been carried out between 25 July and the current time and why the issue was being brought back to the committee. A query was also raised on how the process of making a decision on the bridge by the CoL could take 12 months.

Officers advised that the main issue being brought back to committee related to the vesting of the bridge and whether the committee wished to authorise this before the structure could be comprehensively assessed. The decision to assess the structure had been agreed to by Committee on 25 July.

Even though the structural surveys were promptly commissioned, the appointed surveyors had to wait for a date to access to the highway from TfL. This delay had also meant that there had been no opportunity for approval of any project through the Gateway process.

Members expressed the view that given the bridge would be of use to all in the City, not just those in the locality, it was essential that ownership be transferred to the CoL as soon as possible so that the project could proceed to the Gateway process.

RESOLVED – That the owners be advised that the CoL wish to acquire the Thames Court Footbridge and that a project be initiated through the Gateway procedure to bring it back into use.

b) Temple Area Traffic Review

This item was withdrawn.

c) Electric Vehicle Charging

The Committee considered a report on the need for electric vehicle (EV) charging in the City of London. The report proposed an overarching policy on charging for electric vehicles, balancing the benefit of providing charging facilities within the Square Mile at appropriate locations whilst guarding against the generation of additional vehicle trips and minimising the impact on the public realm.

Members noted that the report proposed placing rapid charging points for taxis in Baynard House car park and raised concerns on this location, noting that charging points at taxi ranks might be more useful. Members added that the location in a car park might attract additional vehicles to the City solely to use the charging points.

Some Members raised their concerns on the low number of charging points proposed and stated that the City should lead the way in this field. Others considered the paper to set out a proportional response to the need for charging points and that in addition to taxis, private cars should be able to use the rapid charging points

The Director of Transportation and Public Realm explained that Officers had worked with TfL and consulted taxi drivers in order to offer the appropriate number of charging points in locations that would be used by drivers. Officers believed that at the current time, given the low number of zero emission taxis likely to be in service in 2018, the new provision would be adequate. It was important to provide a service to the vehicles within the City, but a balance had to be struck in order to ensure the charging points were not an attraction for drivers who did not ordinarily travel into the City, as this would exacerbate the issues of congestion and pollution. The Director also explained that a sample of taxi drivers had been consulted regarding the appropriateness of using Baynard House car park for the taxi charging points and that all consulted considered this appropriate given the local café nearby.

One Member suggested that if the large rapid charging points were not successful that officers should considering installing the smaller fast charging (22 KW) points. The Committee were reminded that the scheme was currently being funded by TFL whose legal advice was that the smaller charging points would be anti competitive given not all of the new electric taxis would be able to use these points to an equal effect.

Members noted that the Port Health had requested that the proposed review of the success of this charging strategy be brought forward from December 2018 to July 2018.

RESOLVED - To

- Approve the policy to support the installation of electric vehicle charge points at appropriate locations which will take into account the need to guard against additional vehicle trips and have minimal impact on the public realm;
- 2) Approve the implementation of eight rapid charge points for taxis at Baynard House car park; and
- 3) Approve the implementation on a trial basis of a rapid charge point at Noble Street taxi rest bay. To be reviewed and reported back to Planning Transportation Committee after 6 months to determine whether it should be made permanent.

d) Tudor Street

The Committee received a report previously considered by the Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee on 5 September 2017 concerning the alternative junction layout and delivery of mitigation measures at Tudor Street/New Bridge Street.

The report sought agreement for officers to work with TfL to confirm whether the new alternative layout was viable through detailed design and modelling, and drew Members' attention to the fact that if it is found to be so, then the cost would be in excess of £2.3M for which funding had not currently been identified.

The Committee noted that the recommendations had been approved by the Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee and would be considered at the Court of Common Council on the 12 October 2017.

RESOLVED -To

- 1) Agree that officers continue to work with TfL and representatives of the Temples to establish the viability of the new layout through detailed design, and traffic modelling, and
- 2) Endorse officers to investigate possible funding options for the scheme.

At the end of this item, and in respect of Standing Order No. 40, the Chairman sought the Committee's consent to extend the meeting to allow for the remaining business to be considered. This was put to the meeting and **AGREED**.

e) Draft Mayor's Transport Strategy

The Committee received a report concerning the CoL's response to the Mayor of London's draft Transport Strategy (MTS) which was published on 21 June 2017, and set out the Mayor's policies and proposals for transport to 2041.

Members were supportive of the Strategy and welcomed the emphasis on traffic reduction, however suggested that a number of responses should be strengthened in relation to ensuring a balanced approach to managing both taxis and Private Hire Vehicles (PHVs), reducing emissions from both petrol and diesel PHVs and the City Corporation's support for the expansion of Heathrow. Also measures to reduce the number of fatalities needed to be immediate, not in the future.

Members also highlighted the need to make more use of the river as a means of transportation, the potential to improve the Congestion Charge, and the need to ensure street improvements consider the needs of all users.

RESOLVED – That the CoL Corporation's response to the Mayor's Transport Strategy be agreed subject to the comments made.

f) Dockless Cycle Hire

The Committee received a report concerning the proposed CoL policy statement on proposed dockless cycle hire, in response to the commercial dockless cycle hire operations that were beginning to launch in London and were likely to affect the City.

The report also set out proposals to manage the operation of dockless cycle hire in the Square Mile through Transport for London's (TfL) Code of Practice.

RESOLVED to

- 1) Approve the proposed City Corporation Policy Statement on dockless cycle hire set out in paragraph 13 of the report; and
- 2) Endorse and adopt the TfL Dockless Cycle Hire Code of Conduct

g) City Fund Highway Declaration - 22 Bishopsgate, EC2

RESOLVED to declare an area of City Fund highway land measuring 2,739 ft2 (254.46 m2) to be wholly surplus to highway requirements and further City Fund highway land measuring 1,301 ft2 (120.87 m2) surplus to highway requirements only in respect of the airspace and subterranean parts thus ensuring retention of the highway stratum for the continuing highway functions therein and all situated at Bishopsgate, Undershaft and Great St Helen's EC2 as shown on the annexed plan to enable disposal upon terms including necessary datum levels all to be approved by the Corporate Asset Sub

Committee and Finance Committee and the Court of Common Council.

h) City Fund Highway Declaration - Great Swan Alley

RESOLVED to declare a volume of City Fund highway land above an area of highway measuring 78 ft2 (7.2m2) situated in Great Swan Alley, EC2 to be surplus to highway requirements to enable its disposal upon terms to be approved by the Corporate Asset Sub Committee and subject to the City Corporation retaining ownership of the highway and the continuing highway functions.

i) Department of the Built Environment Risk Management - Quarterly Report

RESOLVED to note the report and the actions taken in the Department of the Built Environment to monitor and manage effectively risks arising from the department's operations.

9. CITY OF LONDON CULTURAL STRATEGY

The Committee received a report concerning the development of the new cultural strategy which had been designed to fully reflect the organisation's activities across arts, culture, heritage and learning and its new and emerging ambitions.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

10. DECONSTRUCTION AND CONSTRUCTION CODE OF PRACTICE

The Committee considered a report on the Draft Code of Practice for Deconstruction and Construction Sites Eighth Edition 2017. The report highlighted the Code's aim to set out simply and clearly what constituted acceptable site practice within the City, and to assist developers, architects, engineers and construction professionals to prepare Schemes of Protective Works required for the planning process, to plan, cost and manage the environmental issues which arose in the industry.

A member raised a query regarding Saturday morning construction work, and it was confirmed that Port Health Committee had instructed officers to investigate and consult on a further amendment to the Code prohibiting Saturday morning construction work.

RESOLVED – That

- 1) The Code be approved and published on 3 October 2017;
- 2) The introduction of the proposed monitoring contribution fees set out in Appendix L of the Code be approved with effect from 3 October 2017; and

3) The amendments to the Standard Panning Conditions as shown in Appendix Four be endorsed.

11. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

A Member expressed concern that the paint marking left on the roads by Thames Tideway were still there despite the CoL previously seeking assurance that these would be washed away.

The Director of Transportation and Public Realm advised that it had been established that Thames Tideway had used permanent rather than the correct soluble paint and it was agreed that Thames Tideway be asked to meet the full costs of cleaning up the area.

12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT There were no items of urgent business.

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

14. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

RESOLVED - That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2017 be approved as correct record.

15. LONDON WALL CAR PARK CLOSURE

The Committee considered a report relating to the closure of the London Wall Car Park.

16. 15/16 MINORIES AND 62 ALDGATE HIGH STREET

The Committee considered a report in relation to the development of the site of 15/16 Minories and 62 Aldgate High Street.

17. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

The non-public questions were noted.

18. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

The Committee received a short update on the latest position with regard to Bernard Morgan House.

The meeting closed at 1.30 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Amanda Thompson tel. no.: 020 7332 3414 amanda.thompson@cityoflondon.gov.uk